### TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

#### TITLE SHEET

#### OKLAHOMA TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF

OF

#### **UNITI FIBER LLC**

107 St. Francis Street, Suite 180 Mobile, AL 36602 Telephone: (251) 662-1170 Toll Free Number: (877) 652-2321

This Tariff contains descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the furnishing of competitive, presubscribed resale and facilities-based local exchange and interexchange telecommunications services provided by Uniti Fiber LLC within the State of Oklahoma. This Tariff is on file with the Oklahoma Corporation Commission and may be inspected during normal business hours at Uniti Fiber's principal place of business at 107 St. Francis Street, Suite 1800, Mobile, AL 36602. Questions regarding this Tariff should be addressed to Jeffrey R. Strenkowski, Vice President, Deputy General Counsel of Government Affairs at 501-458-4397 or via postal service at Uniti Fiber's principal business address.

#### CHECK SHEET

The pages listed below of this Tariff are effective as of the date shown. Original and Revised pages as named below contain all changes from the original Tariff that are in effect as of the date indicated.

PAGE	REVISION	PAGE	REVISION
Title	Original*	26	Original*
1	Original*	27	Original*
2	Original*	28	Original*
3	Original*	29	Original*
4	Original*	30	Original*
5	Original*	31	Original*
6	Original*	32	Original*
7	Original*	33	Original*
8	Original*	34	Original*
9	Original*	35	Original*
10	Original*	36	Original*
11	Original*	37	Original*
12	Original*	38	Original*
13	Original*	39	Original*
14	Original*	40	Original*
15	Original*	41	Original*
16	Original*		
17	Original*		
18	Original*		
19	Original*		
20	Original*		
21	Original*		
22	Original*		
23	Original*		
24	Original*		
25	Original*		

Issued: December 21, 2018

Effective: June 26, 2019

Mobile, AL 36602

<sup>\* -</sup> indicates pages included with this filing

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
CHECK SHEET	2
TABLE OF CONTENTS	3
EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS	4
TARIFF FORMAT	5
APPLICATION OF TARIFF	6
ACCESSIBILITY OF TARIFF	6
SECTION 1 – TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS	7
SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS	11
SECTION 3 - SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS	32
SECTION 4 - RESALE/RESOLD SERVICES	35
SECTION 5 – SERVICE OFFERINGS	36
SECTION 6 - RATES AND CHARGES	30

## TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

# **EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS**

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below:

- AT Addition to Text.
- C Correction.
- CP Change in Practice.
- CT Change in Text.
- DR Discontinued Rate.
- FC Change in Format Lettering or Numbering.
- MT Moved Text.
- NR New Rare.
- RT Removal of Text.

#### TARIFF FORMAT

- **A.** Page Numbering Sheet numbers appear in the upper right corner of the Page. Pages are numbered sequentially. However, occasionally, when a new Page is added between Pages already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new Page added between Pages 14 and 15 would be 14.1.
- **B.** Page Revision Numbers Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each Page. These numbers are used to determine the most current version of a page on file with the Commission. For example, the 4th revised Page 14 cancels the 3rd Revised Page 14. Because of various suspension periods, deferrals, etc. the Commission follows in its Tariff approval process, the most current Page number on file with the Commission is not always the page in effect. Consult the Check Sheet for the Sheet currently in effect.
- **C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence** There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of code is subservient to its next higher level:

2. 2.1. 2.1.1. 2.1.1.A. 2.1.1.A.1. 2.1.1.A.1.(a) I. 2.1.1.A.1.(a) I.(i). 2.1.1.A.1.(a) I.(i).

**D.** Check Sheets - When a Tariff filing is made with the Commission, an updated Check Sheet accompanies the Tariff filing. The Check Sheet lists the Pages contained in the Tariff with a cross-reference to the current revision number. When new Pages are added, the Check Sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by and asterisk (\*).

### TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

#### APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This tariff contains regulations, rates and charges applicable to the provision of local exchange, interexchange and access services provided by Uniti Fiber LLC to customers in the State of Oklahoma. Uniti Fiber provides dark fiber, private line, ethernet, dedicated internet access, wavelength and collocation services to wholesale and enterprise customers. The Company provides service via its own facilities, facilities leased from other carriers and through resale. The provision of service by the Company as set forth in this tariff does not constitute a joint undertaking with the Customer for the furnishing of any service.

The Company's telecommunications services will be available to end-users initially in areas served by AT&T Oklahoma, formerly Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, and Valor Telecommunications of Texas, LP, d/b/a Windstream Communications Southwest, Windstream Oklahoma, LLC and Oklahoma Windstream, LLC, Oklahoma Communications Systems, Inc. d/b/a TDS Telecom/Oklahoma Communications Systems, Inc., and Mid- America Telephone Company, Inc. d/b/a TDS Telecom/Mid-America Telephone.

#### ACCESSIBILITY OF TARIFF

This tariff will be maintained and made available for inspection by any Customer at the Company's principal business office located at 107 St. Francis Street, Suite 1800 St., Mobile, AL 36602. This tariff is available for viewing, during normal business hours at the Commission or the Company's principal place of business. Additionally, copies are available upon request, free of charge to customers by contacting the Company at 1-877-652-2321.

### TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

#### SECTION 1 – TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

#### 1.1 Definitions

Access Service – Any tariffed wholesale service provided by one local exchange carrier to another local exchange carrier, competitive local exchange carrier, interexchange carrier certified by the Commission or an end-user that allows for access to the local exchange telecommunications network, excluding local interconnection agreements.

Applicant - Any person or lawful entity requesting telecommunications service from a telecommunications service provider.

Carrier or Common Carrier - See Interexchange Carrier.

Central Office - A local Company switching unit system where exchange service customer station loops are terminated for purposes of interconnection to each other and to trunks or toll lines.

Channel - A communications path between two or more points of termination.

Class of Service - A customer group which has similar characteristics such as volume of use, time of use, extent of use and nature and purpose of use, type of rate or location as classified by the telecommunications service provider. For example, the business or residential class of service.

Commission - The Oklahoma Corporation Commission.

Communications System - Denotes channels and other facilities which are capable of communications between terminal equipment provided by other than the Company,

Company - Uniti Fiber LLC.

Complaint - Any objection from an applicant or customer concerning a charge, facility, rule, service, or other Commission-regulated activity that requires an investigation or an account review and corrective action by a telecommunications provider.

## SECTION 1 – TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS (Cont'd).

### 1.1 Definitions (Cont'd).

Customer - Any individual, firm, partnership, association, corporation or other lawful entity which subscribes to and agrees to pay for the regulated services offered under this tariff, including Interexchange Carriers.

Customer Designated Premises - The premises specified by the Customer for termination of Local Exchange, Interexchange or Access Services.

Customer Premises Equipment - Telecommunications equipment which is located on a customer's premises, e.g., telephone instruments, PBX switches, etc.

Demarcation Point - An identifiable point at a customer's premises where operation and maintenance responsibilities end for the telecommunications provider as defined in Part 68 of the Rules of the Federal Communications Commission and passes from one person to another.

End User - Any customer of an intrastate telecommunications service that is not a Carrier or Common Carrier, except that a Carrier shall be deemed to be an End User when such Carrier uses a telecommunications service for administrative purposes. A person or entity that offers telecommunications service exclusively as a reseller shall be deemed to be an End User if all resale transmissions offered by such reseller originate on the premises of such reseller when making such service available to others, directly or indirectly.

Exchange Service Area - A unit established by a telecommunications service provider for the administration of telecommunications service in a specified area for which a separate local rate schedule is provided. It may consist of one or more central offices together with associated plant facilities used in furnishing telecommunications services in that area.

Facilities - Denotes any cable, poles, conduit, carrier equipment, wire center distribution frames, central office switching equipment, etc., of a telecommunications service provider and utilized to provide the service offered under this tariff.

Holidays - New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, or any day which is a legally observed federal government or local state holiday.

#### SECTION 1 – TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, (Cont'd.)

### 1.1 Definitions (Cont'd.)

Interstate Communications - Any communications that crosses over a state boundary. Interstate Communications includes interstate and international communications.

Intrastate Communications - Any communications that originates and terminates within the same state and is subject to oversight by a state regulatory commission as provided by the laws of the state involved.

Local Exchange Carrier - A telecommunications provider of basic local exchange service and switched access service. Such term does not include commercial mobile service providers.

Originating Direction - The use of Switched Access Service for the origination of calls from an End User premises to an IC premises.

Outage - An unplanned temporary loss of telecommunications service caused by a malfunction of or damage to telecommunications provider facilities.

Point Of Termination - The point of demarcation within a customer-designated premises at which the Company's responsibility for the provision of access service ends.

Premises - A building or buildings on contiguous property, not separated by a public highway or right-of-way.

Serving Wire Center - The wire center from which the Customer-designated premises normally obtains dial tone from the Company.

Special Access Circuit - The physical pathway for transmission of information between a dedicated originating point and a dedicated terminating point.

Suspension of Service - A temporary shut-off of service by a telecommunications service provider without a customer request -- not an outage or an interruption of service and without terminating the contract or removing the telephone service from the Customer's premises.

Telecommunications Service Provider ("TSP") - Any authorized person, firm, partnership, corporation, association, or other entity that offers telecommunications services to the public for compensation.

### TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

## SECTION 1 – TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, (Cont'd.)

## 1.1 Definitions (Cont'd.)

Telecommunications Services - The offering to the public for compensation the transmission between or among points specified by the user of voice, data, or other electronic information at any frequency over any part of the electromagnetic spectrum, notwithstanding any other use of the associated facilities. Such term does not include radio and television broadcast or distribution services, or the provision of publishing of yellow pages, regardless of the entity providing such services, or services to the extent that such services are used in connection with the operation of an electric utility system owned by a government entity.

Wire Center - A physical location in which one or more central offices used for the provision of exchange services are located.

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

#### 2.1 Undertaking of the Company

The Company shall be responsible only for the installation, operation and maintenance of service which it provides and does not undertake to transmit messages under this tariff. Services provided under this tariff are provided 24 hours a day, seven days per week, unless otherwise specified in applicable sections of this tariff. The Company does not provide switched access services.

The Company will comply with the provisions of 165:55-13-10 and shall meet service standards within the terms and conditions of services stated within this tariff.

#### 2.2 Use of Facilities and Service

A Customer desiring to obtain service from the Company may do so either orally or in writing. Customers may be required to sign a service agreement or contract or the acceptance of an application for service may constitute a contract between the Customer and the Company and obligate the Customer to abide by the terms, conditions and rules of the currently effective or any future tariff of the Company. The Company reserves the right to refuse service to a Customer, due to certain circumstances such as a lack of facilities or other impediments.

#### 2.2.1 Use of Service

- A. Service may be used for any lawful purpose by the Customer or by any End User.
- B. The Customer obtains no property right or interest in the use of any specific type of facility, service, equipment, number, process, or code. All right, title and interest to such items remain, at all times, solely with the Company.

## TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

## SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

- 2.2 Use of Facilities and Service, (Cont'd.)
- 2.2.1 B. (Cont'd)
  - 1. Service may be used for any lawful purpose by the Customer or by any End User.
  - 2. The Customer obtains no property right or interest in the use of any specific type of facility, service, equipment, number, process, or code. All right, title and interest to such items remain, at all times, solely with the Company,

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

### 2.2 Use of Facilities and Service, (Cont'd.)

#### 2.2.2 Limitations

- A. Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary facilities and/or equipment and subject to the provisions of this tariff. The Company may decline applications for service to or from a location where the necessary facilities or equipment are not available. The Company may discontinue furnishing service in accordance with the terms of this tariff.
- B. The Company reserves the right to discontinue or limit service when necessitated by conditions beyond its control (examples of these conditions are more fully set forth elsewhere in this tariff), or when service is used in violation of provisions of this tariff or the law.
- C. The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its service when available, and, as more fully set forth elsewhere in this tariff, shall not be liable for errors or for failure to establish connections.
- D. The Company reserves the right to discontinue service, limit service, or to impose requirements as required to meet changing regulatory or statutory rules and standards, or when such rules and standards have an adverse material affect on the business or economic feasibility of providing service, as determined by the Company in its reasonable judgment.
- E. The Company reserves the right to refuse an application for service made by a present or former Customer who is indebted to the Company for telecommunications services previously rendered pursuant to this tariff until the indebtedness is satisfied. If service is refused to an Applicant, the Company will provide within seven (7) business days a written explanation to the Applicant of the reason for refusal, the conditions under which service may be provided and the Applicants right to file a complaint with the Commission.

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

### 2.2 Use of Facilities and Service, (Cont'd.)

#### 2.2.3 Customer-Authorized Use

Any service provided under this tariff may be resold to or shared (jointly used) with other persons at the Customer's option. The Customer remains solely responsible for all use of service ordered by it or billed to its telephone number(s) pursuant to this tariff, for determining who is authorized to use its service, and for promptly notifying the Company of any unauthorized use. The Customer may advise its customers that a portion of its service is provided by the Company, but the Customer shall not represent that the Company jointly participates with the Customer in the provision of the service.

## 2.2.4 Use and Ownership of Equipment

The Company's equipment, apparatus, channels and lines shall be carefully used. Equipment furnished by the Company shall remain its property and shall be returned to the Company whenever requested, within a reasonable period following the request, in good condition (subject to reasonable wear and tear). The Customer is required to reimburse the Company for any loss of, or damage to, the facilities or equipment on the Customer's premises, including loss or damage caused by agents, employees or independent contractors of the Customer through any negligence.

#### 2.3 Minimum Period of Service

The minimum period for which services are provided and for which rates and charges are applicable is one month unless otherwise specified. When a service is discontinued prior to the expiration of the minimum period, charges are applicable, whether the service is used or not.

#### TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

## 2.4 Interruptions of Service

A service interruption is the temporary stopping of service for maintenance, testing, repair or safety. The Company shall undertake efforts to avoid unplanned interruptions of service or outages to its Customers, and in the event of such interruptions shall restore service as soon as practical. Planned service interruptions, including but not limited to maintenance or testing, as noted in Sections 2.7 and 2.9 following, shall be made during a period of time that will cause minor, if any, disruptions to and will not unreasonably inconvenience Customers. Planned interruptions of service shall also be communicated to the Customer prior to their occurrence. If local service is interrupted for more than twenty-four (24) hours, a portion of the Customers' monthly charge will be refunded for the number of days that service was not available.

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

#### 2.5 Payment for Service Rendered

2.5.1 Service is provided and billed on a monthly basis. Bills are due and payable within twenty-two (22) days after the date that the bill has been mailed. In the event that the Company incurs fees or expenses, including attorney's fees, collecting, or attempting to collect, any charges owed to the Company, the Company may charge the Customer all such fees and expenses reasonably incurred, including a collection fee on the overdue charges accruing at the rate of 1.5% per month or the highest rate allowed by law, whichever is lower. Collection fees on overdue charges shall begin to accrue when the account is assigned to an outside collection agency. Such collection fees are separate and distinct from attorney's fees and other costs incurred in collecting charges owed to the Company. Late payment charges do not apply to final accounts.

Regarding the manner in which the creditworthiness of service applicants is established, as well as the manner in which disconnection of service for nonpayment of charges occurs, the Company will comply with the rules adopted by the Commission.

- 2.5.2 The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for service furnished to the Customer, or the Customer's agents, end users or customers. All charges due by the Customer are payable to the Company or to the Company's authorized billing agent. Any objections to billed charges must be reported promptly to the Company.
- 2.5.3 A charge of \$25.00 will be assessed for any check or other form of payment returned by the drawee bank or other financial institution for insufficient or uncollected funds, closed account, apparent tampering, missing signature or endorsement, or any other insufficiency or discrepancy necessitating return of the instrument at the discretion of the drawee bank of financial institution. This charge will be assessed in addition to any charges assessed by the drawee bank or any other financial institution. The foregoing shall not limit the Company's right to discontinue service for returned checks or drafts under Section 2.8.1 below.

### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

# 2.6 <u>Disputed Bills</u>

Objections to billed charges must be reported to the Company within eighteen (18) months of receipt of billing. Claims must include all supporting documentation and may be submitted online at <a href="mailto:unitifiber@uniti.com">unitifiber@uniti.com</a> or by telephone at (251) 662-1170. The Company shall make adjustments to the Customer's invoice to the extent that circumstances existing which reasonably indicate that such changes are appropriate. The Company will investigate and notify the Customer of the results within twenty-one (21) days of receipt of the complaint or dispute. Any such amount becomes due and payable at once. In order to avoid disconnection of Service, such amount must be paid within seven (7) calendar days after the date Company notifies Customer that the investigation and review are completed and that such payment must be made or Service will be interrupted. However, the Service will not be disconnected prior to the Due By Date shown on the bill. In no event will service be discontinued on the day preceding any day on which Carrier is not prepared to accept payment of the amount due and to reconnect service, and service will not be disconnected for non-payment of any disputed amount during the Commission's review of the dispute.

However, if the Company and a Carrier are unable to resolve such a dispute, the Carrier may file a complaint with the Commission in writing or orally.

#### By Mail:

Oklahoma Corporation Commission Consumer Services Division P.O. Box 52000-2000 Oklahoma City, OK 73152-2000

#### **By Phone:**

Direct: (405) 521-2331 or Toll Free: (800) 522-8154

8:00am to 4:30pm Monday through Friday

### TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

### 2.7 Inspection, Testing and Adjustment

- 2.7.1 The Company may, upon reasonable notice, make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine whether the terms and conditions of this tariff are being complied with in the installation, operation or maintenance of the Customer's or the Company's facilities or equipment. The Company may interrupt service at any time, without penalty or liability, due to the departure from or reasonable suspicion of the departure from any of these terms and conditions.
- 2.7.2 The Customer shall be responsible for making arrangements or obtaining permission for safe and reasonable access for Company employees or agents of the Company to enter the premises of the Customer or any joint user or customer of the Customer at any reasonable hour for the purpose of inspecting, repairing, testing or removing any part of the Company's facilities.
- 2.7.3 Upon reasonable notice, the facilities or equipment provided by the Company shall be made available to the Company for such tests and adjustments as may be necessary for their maintenance in a condition satisfactory to the Company. No interruption allowance shall be granted for the time during which such tests and adjustments are made, unless such interruption exceeds twenty-four hours in length and is requested by the Customer.

### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

### 2.8 Suspension or Termination of Service

### 2.8.1 Suspension or Termination for Nonpayment

In the event that any bill rendered or any deposit required is not paid, the Company may suspend service or terminate service until the bill or the required deposit has been paid. If service is suspended or terminated for nonpayment, the Customer must remit a Connection Charge as well as any payment due and any applicable deposits prior to reconnection. If service has been suspended due to the unauthorized use of service or tampering with equipment that has been furnished by the Company, a reasonable payment for damage may also be requested from the Customer, prior to service being reconnected.

All disconnection situations will be handled in accordance with the rules adopted by the Commission.

Suspension or termination shall not be made until:

- A. At least ten (10) days after written notification has been served personally on the Customer, or at least twenty (20) days after written notification has been mailed to the billing address of the Customer or;
- B. At least ten (10) days after the Customer has either signed for or refused a registered letter containing written notification mailed to the billing address of the Customer.

Local exchange or access services shall not be suspended or terminated for nonpayment on weekends, public holidays, other federal and state holidays proclaimed by the President or the Governor, or on days when the main business office of the Company is not open for business.

### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

### 2.8 Suspension or Termination of Service, (Cont'd.)

### 2.8.2 Exceptions to Suspension and Termination

Local exchange and access services shall not be suspended or terminated for:

- A. Nonpayment of bills rendered for charges other than interexchange services or deposits requested in connection with these services;
- B. Nonpayment for service for which a bill has not been rendered;
- C. Nonpayment for service that has not been rendered;
- D. Nonpayment of any billed charge which is in dispute or for the nonpayment of a deposit which is in dispute during the period before a determination of the dispute is made by the Company in accordance with Company's complaint handling procedures.

Local exchange or access services may be suspended or terminated for nonpayment of the undisputed portion of a disputed bill or deposit if the Customer does not pay the undisputed portion after being asked to do so.

#### 2.8.3 Verification of Nonpayment

Local exchange or access services shall not be suspended or terminated for nonpayment of a bill rendered or a required deposit unless the Company has verified that payment has not been received at any office of the Company or at any office of an authorized collection agent through the end of the period indicated in the notice.

## SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

### 2.8 Suspension or Termination of Service, (Cont'd.)

### 2.8.4 Termination for Cause Other Than Nonpayment

#### A. General

The Company, after notice in writing to the Customer, when required, and after having given the Customer an appropriate opportunity, five (5) days to respond to such notice, may terminate service and sever the connection(s) from the Customer's premises under the following conditions:

- 1. in the event of prohibited, unlawful or improper use of the facilities or service, or any other violation by the Customer of the rules and regulations governing the facilities and service furnished, or
- 2. if, in the judgment of the Company, any use of the facilities or service by the Customer may adversely affect the Company's personnel, plant, property or service. The Company shall have the right to take immediate action, including termination of the service and severing of the connection, without notice to the Customer in the event of a hazardous or dangerous condition when injury or damage to telephone personnel, plant, property or service is occurring, or is likely to occur, or
- 3. without notice, in the event of unauthorized use, where the Customer fails to take reasonable steps to prevent the unauthorized use of the facilities or service received from the Company, or
- 4. in the event that service is connected for a Customer who is indebted to the Company for service or facilities previously furnished, that service may be terminated by the Company unless the Customer satisfies the indebtedness within twenty (20) days after written notification.
- 5. without notice, in the event that the Customers use of equipment adversely affects service to others.

### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

- 2.8 Suspension or Termination of Service, (Cont'd.)
  - 2.8.4 Termination for Cause Other Than Nonpayment, (Cont'd.)
    - B. Prohibited, Unlawful or Improper Use of the Facilities or Service

Prohibited, unlawful or improper use of the facilities or service includes, but is not limited to:

- 1. The use of facilities or service of the Company without payment of tariff charges;
- 2. Permitting fraudulent use.
- C. Abandonment or Unauthorized Use of Facilities
  - 1. If it is determined that facilities have been abandoned, or are being used by unauthorized persons, or that the Customer has failed to take reasonable steps to prevent unauthorized use, the Company may terminate local exchange or access service, without notice.

In the event that access service is terminated for abandonment of facilities or unauthorized use and service is subsequently restored to the same Customer at the same location:

- a. No charge shall apply for the period during which service had been terminated, and
- b. Reconnection charges will apply when service is restored. However, no charge shall be made for reconnection if the service was terminated due to an error on the part of the Company.

### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

- 2.8 Suspension or Termination of Service, (Cont'd.)
  - 2.8.4 Termination for Cause Other Than Nonpayment, (Cont'd.)
    - C. Abandonment or Unauthorized Use of Facilities, (Cont'd.)
      - 1. If it is determined that facilities have been abandoned, or are being used by unauthorized persons, or that the Customer has failed to take reasonable steps to prevent unauthorized use, the Company may terminate access service. (Cont'd.)
        - c. Change in the Company's Ability to Secure Access

Any change in the Company's ability (a) to secure and retain suitable facilities and rights for the construction and maintenance of the necessary circuits and equipment or (b) to secure and retain suitable space for its plant and facilities in the building where service is provided to the Customer may require termination of a Customer's service until such time as new arrangements can be made. No charges will be assessed on the Customer while service is terminated, and no connection charges will apply when the service is restored.

2.8.5 Emergency Termination of Service

The Company will immediately terminate the service of any Customer, on request, when the Customer has reasonable belief that the service is being used by an unauthorized person or persons. The Company may require that the request be submitted in writing as a follow-up to a request made by telephone.

## SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D,)

#### 2.9 Obligations of the Customer

#### 2.9.1 Damages

The Customer shall reimburse the Company for damages to Company facilities utilized to provide services under this tariff caused by the negligence or willful act of the Customer, or resulting from improper use of the Company's facilities, or due to malfunction of any facilities or equipment provided by other than the Company, except that no Customer shall be liable for another Customer's actions.

## 2.9.2 Ownership of Facilities

Facilities utilized by the Company to provide service under the provisions of this tariff shall remain the property of the Company. Such facilities shall be returned to the Company by the Customer, whenever requested, within a reasonable period following the request in as good condition as reasonable wear permits.

# 2.9.3 Equipment Space and Power

The Customer shall furnish to the Company, at no charge, equipment space and electrical power required by the Company to provide services under this tariff at the points of termination of such services. The selection of AC or DC power shall be mutually agreed to by the Customer and the Company. The Customer shall make necessary arrangements in order that the Company will have access to such spaces at reasonable times for installation, testing, repair, maintenance or removal of Company service.

# 2.9.4 Testing

The services provided under this tariff shall be made available to the Company at mutually agreed upon times in order to permit the Company to test, adjust and maintain the services in satisfactory operating condition. No credit will be allowed for any interruption during such tests and adjustments.

#### 2.9.5 Termination

A Customer initiated request to terminate service must be made to the Company orally or in writing.

### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

## 2.9 <u>Obligations of the Customer</u>, (Cont'd.)

#### 2.9.5 Design of Customer Services

The Customer shall be responsible for its own expense for the overall design of its services and for any redesigning or rearrangements of its services which may be required because of changes in facilities, operations or procedures of the Company, minimum protection criteria or operating or maintenance characteristics of the facilities.

### 2.9.6 Network Contingency Coordination

The Customer shall, in cooperation with the Company, coordinate in planning the actions to be taken to maintain maximum network capability following natural or manmade disasters which affect telecommunications service.

### 2.10 Services Provided Pursuant to Term Agreements

Upon expiration of a term contract, the service term will renew automatically at the same terms and conditions for successive one-year terms unless either party notifies the other 30 days prior to the expiration of the then current term that it wishes to terminate the service. This provision will be applicable to contracts executed subsequent to the effective date of this tariff.

### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

## 2.11 Taxes

The Customer is responsible for payment of any sales, use, gross receipts, excise or other local, state and federal taxes, charges or assessments, however designated (excluding taxes on the Company's net income) imposed on or based upon the provision, sale or use of the Company's services.

- 2.11.1 All state and local sales taxes are listed as separate line items on the Customer's bill and are not included in the quoted rate(s).
- 2.11.2 Other taxes, charges and the regulatory assessment shall be identified in the aggregate on the Customer's bill and shall not be included in the quoted rate(s).
- 2.11.3 Such taxes, charges, and assessments shall be billed to the Customers receiving service(s) within the territorial limits of such state, county, city or other taxing authority. Such billing shall allocate the tax, charge and/or assessment among Customers uniformly on the basis of each Customer's monthly charges for the types of service made subject to such tax, charge and/or assessment.

### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

# 2.12 OUSF Recovery

## 2.12.1 General Regulations

- A. Contributions to the OUSF are assessed as a uniform percentage of the telecommunications carrier's total retail-billed intrastate telecommunications revenue for a 12-month period identified by the OUSF Administrator. This percentage is established annually pursuant to an Order issued by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission.
- B. Pursuant to 17 O.S. § 139.106 and OAC 165:59-3-46, a telecommunications carrier may, at its option, recover the amount of its contributions to the Oklahoma Universal Service Fund (OUSF) from its retail customers. Such recovery shall be made in a fair, equitable and nondiscriminatory manner.
- C. Recovery shall be assessed by either a flat recovery fee or a percentage recovery charge, as described below.
- D. Recovery shall be assessed on the same retail revenues as those used for contribution purposes.

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

### 2.12 OUSF Recovery (Cont'd).

## 2.12.2. OUSF Recovery Charge (Percentage or Flat Fee)

- A. Recovery of the OUSF contribution from retail customers shall be made by a uniform monthly flat fee or percentage, which shall be applied to each retail customer in addition to any other applicable rates and charges as provided for in this tariff. The OUSF Recovery charge is intended to recover the total dollar amount paid into the OUSF, and shall be adjusted to compensate for any over-recovery or under-recovery from retail customers, pursuant to OAC 165:59-3-46.
- B. The results of such calculation(s) shall be rounded to the penny for the purpose of applying this amount to retail customer's bills.
- C. The resulting OUSF recovery amounts are not revenues of the Company, and therefore, are not subject to state or local taxes, franchise fees, or any other assessments or fees. The Company shall not include the OUSF Recovery Charge in the calculation of such taxes, fees, or assessment in the customer's bill.
- D. If recovery is made pursuant to this tariff from the retail customers, the amount resulting from the OUSF Recovery Charge will be stated separately in the customer's monthly bill.
- E. Records shall be kept by the Company which reflect the OUSF contributions paid by the Company for each period along with all amounts recovered by the Company through the Recovery of OUSF Contributions Tariff. This information shall be provided to the Commission along with any changes to the OUSF Recovery Charge.

#### SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, (CONT'D.)

## 2.12 OUSF Recovery (Cont'd).

## 2.12.3 Changes in the OUSF Recovery Charge

- A. Changes to the OUSF Recovery Charge shall be made by notifying in writing the Director of the Public Utility Division. A replacement tariff page reflecting the revised OUSF Recovery Charge shall be included with the notification letter.
- B. Notification of changes to the OUSF Recovery Charge shall be made at least 30 days before effective date of change.
- C. The revised OUSF Recovery Charge shall not be billed to any retail customer until such notification is received by the Director of the Public Utility Division.
- D. If an OUSF Monthly Recovery Charge is used to recover the OUSF contributions of the company from its retail customers, the page which reflects the amount of the recovery charge shall also include the computation or formula used to determine the Monthly Recovery Charge. Additionally, at the time the OUSF Monthly Recovery Charge is changed and notification is given to the Director of the Public Utility Division, backup information and documentation is to be made available.
- E. Revisions for over-recovery and/or under recovery shall be made no more than once every twelve (12) months, or one time each quarter pursuant to any change in the OUSF contribution factor.

#### **SECTION 3 - SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS**

### 3.1 Special Construction

### 3.1.1 Basis for Charges

Basis for Charges where the Company furnishes a facility or service for which a rate or charge is not specified in the Company's tariffs, charges will be based on the costs incurred by the Company (including return) and may include: (a) nonrecurring charges; (b) recurring charges; (c) termination liabilities; or (d) combinations of a., b. and c.

## 3.1.2 Termination Liability

To the extent that there is no other requirement for use by the Company, a termination liability may apply for facilities specially constructed at the request of a Customer.

- A. The period on which the termination liability is based is the estimated service life of the facilities provided.
- B. The amount of the maximum termination liability is equal to the estimated amounts (including return) for:
  - 1. Costs to install the facilities to be provided including estimated costs for the rearrangements of existing facilities. These costs include: (a) equipment and materials provided or used; (b) engineering, labor and supervision; (c) transportation; and (d) rights of way and/or any required easements;
- C. license preparation, processing, and related fees;
- D. tariff preparation, processing and related fees;
- E. cost of removal and restoration, where appropriate; and
- F. any other identifiable costs related to the specially constructed or rearranged facilities.

## SECTION 3 - SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS, (CONT'D.)

## 3.2 Non-Routine Installation and/or Maintenance

At the Customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the Company's regular business hours, or (in the Company's sole discretion and subject to any conditions it may impose) in hazardous locations. In such cases, charges based on the cost of labor, material, and other costs incurred by or charged to the Company will apply. If installation is started during regular business hours but, at the Customer's request, extends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limited to, weekends, holidays, and/or night hours, additional charges may apply.

# 3.3 <u>Individual Case Basis (ICB) Arrangements</u>

Rates for ICB arrangements will be developed on a case-by-case basis in response to a bona fide request from a Customer or prospective customer for services which vary from tariffed arrangements. Rates quoted in response to such requests may be different for tariffed services than those specified for such services in Section 6, of this tariff. ICB rates will be offered to Customers in writing and will be made available to similarly situated Customers. A summary of each ICB contract pricing arrangement offered pursuant to this paragraph will be filed as an addendum to this tariff within 30 days after the contract is signed by both the Company and the Customer. The following information will be included in the summary:

- 1. Service description
- 2. Rates and charges
- 3. Quantity
- 4. Length of the agreement

### SECTION 3 - SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS, (CONT'D.)

#### 3.4 Promotional Offerings

- 3.4.1 The Company may from time-to-time, make promotional offerings to enhance the marketing of its services. These offerings may be limited to certain dates, times and locations. Promotional offerings are not intended not to replace the Company's obligation to seek approval of permanent rates and charges.
- 3.4.2 The Company may, during promotional periods, offer customers special rate incentives. The Company shall notify the Director of the Public Utility Division, by submitting a completed Promotion Form, specifying the service(s) offered, terms of the promotion, location, and dates of each promotion period.
- 3.4.3 Promotional offerings of services that have been determined to be competitive shall become effective on the date specified in the Notice to the Director of the Public Utility Division, which may be dated no earlier than the date the Notice is provided to the Director of the Public Utility Division.
- 3.4.4 Promotional offerings of non-competitive services shall become effective on the date specified in the Notice, which may be dated no earlier than ten (10) business days after the date that notification is provided to the Director of the Public Utility Division.
- 3.4.5 Promotions may be repeated, provided the initial promotion and extension do not exceed three hundred sixty-five (365) consecutive days and may not be reintroduced for ninety (90) days.

Cause No. PUD201800158 Order No. 698417 Uniti Fiber LLC

Oklahoma Tariff No. 1 Original Page 33

## TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

#### SECTION 4 - RESALE/RESOLD SERVICES

# 4.1 Resale/Resold Services

There are no prohibitions or limitations on the resale of services. Resale and resold services are available only to Carriers who have been certified by the Commission to provide intrastate local exchange services. Resale/resold services will be provided through individual case basis arrangements, which will be filed with and are subject to the approval of the Commission.

#### TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

#### SECTION 5 – SERVICE OFFERINGS

The following services are available to Customers under individual case basis arrangements:

#### 5.1 Metro Ethernet Services:

Metro Ethernet is a network that covers a metropolitan area and that is based on the Ethernet standard. It is commonly used as a metropolitan access network to connect subscribers and businesses to a larger service network or the Internet. Businesses can also use Metro Ethernet to connect branch offices to their Intranet. A typical service provider Metro Ethernet network is a collection of Layer 2 or/and Layer 3 switches or/and routers connected through optical fiber. The topology could be a ring, hub-and-spoke (star), or full or partial mesh. The network will also have a hierarchy: core, distribution (aggregation) and access. The core in most cases is an existing IP/MPLS backbone, but may migrate to newer forms of Ethernet Transport in the form of 10Gbit/s, 40Gbit/s or 100Gbit/s speeds.

Cause No. PUD201800158 Order No. 698417 Uniti Fiber LLC

Oklahoma Tariff No. 1 Original Page 35

## TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

## SECTION 5 – SERVICE OFFERINGS (Continued)

## 5.2 Private Line Services:

Point-to-Point Ethernet solutions are circuits that connect a remote office back to a main office, main office back to an interexchange carrier (IXC), or customer premise to a specific location using fiber optics systems with a Ethernet standard backbone. The connections are primary Layer 2 in Nature, but can also Layer 3. Point-to-Point network do not provide redundancy and can be at speeds of 5Mbps to 100Gbps

## TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

## SECTION 5 – SERVICE OFFERINGS (Continued)

## 5.3 Wavelength Services:

Wave Service is a fully managed, private, point-to-point service delivered over a state-of-theart dense wave division multiplexing (DWDM) network. The product is ideally suited for larger institutions such as government organizations, enterprise customers, interexchange carriers (IXCs) and wireless operators that require dedicated broadband transport network connectivity without the need for capital or the responsibility of owning and operating network infrastructure. Services provide an end-to-end solution with a wide range of transport bandwidths for long haul and metro wave services.

# **SECTION 6 - RATES AND CHARGES**

# 6.1 <u>Metro Ethernet Services</u>:

<u>Bandwidth</u>	MRC	NRC
50Mbps	ICB	ICB
100Mbps	ICB	ICB
200Mbps	ICB	ICB
300Mbps	ICB	ICB
400Mbps	ICB	ICB
500Mbps	ICB	ICB
600Mbps	ICB	ICB
700Mbps	ICB	ICB
800Mbps	ICB	ICB
900Mbps	ICB	ICB
1000Mbps	ICB	ICB
10Gbps	ICB	ICB
•		

# SECTION 6 - RATES AND CHARGES - (Continued)

# 6.2 Private Line Services:

Bandwidth	MRC	NRC
DS-1	ICB	ICB
DS-3	ICB	ICB
OC-3	ICB	ICB
OC-12	ICB	ICB
OC-48	ICB	ICB
OC-192	ICB	ICB

#### SECTION 6 - RATES AND CHARGES - (Continued)

### 6.3. Wavelength Services:

Wave Service is a fully managed, private, point-to-point service delivered over a state-of-the-art dense wave division multiplexing (DWDM) network. The product is ideally suited for larger institutions such as government organizations, enterprise customers, interexchange carriers (IXCs) and wireless operators that require dedicated broadband transport network connectivity without the need for capital or the responsibility of owning and operating network infrastructure. Services provide an end-to-end solution with a wide range of transport bandwidths for long haul and metro wave services

<u>Bandwidth</u>	<u>MRC</u>	NRC
1 Gbps	ICB	ICB
2.5 Gbps	ICB	ICB
10 Gbps	ICB	ICB

## TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

## SECTION 6 - RATES AND CHARGES - (Cont'd.)

# 6.4 Service Elements

## Nonrecurring Charges

Administrative Charge: ICB

Design and Central Office

Connection Charge: ICB

Customer Connection Charge: ICB

Local Distribution Channel: ICB

Channel Mileage Termination: ICB

Channel Mileage: ICB

Optional Features:

Add/Drop Multiplexing: ICB Add/Drop Function: ICB

# TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

# SECTION 6 - RATES AND CHARGES - (Cont'd.)

6.5. Oklahoma Universal Service Fund Recovery Charge

6.5.1 Recovery Percentage 1.20%